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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
WESTERN DISTRICT OF MICHIGAN

NORTHERN DIVISION
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, - No. 2:17-cr-22-01
| Plaintift, : |
: : Hon. Paul L. Maloney
V. . : : United States District Judge
JOSEPH GIDEON GRAVELLE, -
Defendant.
/
PLEA AGREEMENT

* This constitutes the plea agreement between J 6seph Gideon Gravelle and the United
States Attorney's Office for the Western District of Michigan. The terms of the agreement are as

follows:

1. The Defendant Agrees to Plead Guilty.  The Defendant agrees to plead guilty to

Count 1 of the Indictment chérging the Defendant with conspiracy to distribute and possess with
the intent to distribute heroin, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 846, 841(a)(1),
and 841(b)(1)(C). |

2. Defendant Understands the Crime.  In order for the Defendant to be guilty of

violating Title 21, United States Code, Sections 846 and 841(a)(1), the following must be true:
A, Thattwo or more persons conspir‘ed,' br_ agreed, to distribute and possess
| with intent to distribute a controlled substance; and
B.. The Defendant knowingly and Voluntarily joined the conspiracy.

The Defendant is pleading guilty because Defendant is guilty of the charge described above.
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| 3. The Defendant Understands the Penalty. . The statutory maximum sentence that
the Court can impose for this offense is theféllowing: 20 years’ iinprisonment; at least three
years and uptoa Jifetime of supervised reléase; not-, less than one nor inore_than ﬁve years’
E .probaﬁon; a fine of $1,000,000; and a mandatory special assessment of $100.00. The Defendant
agrees to pay the special assessment at or before the time of sentencing unless the Defendant
affirmatively demonstrates to the Court that he lacks the ability to pay..

4, Supervised Relcase Defined. - Supervised release is a period of time following

imprisonment during which the Defendant will be Vsubj ect to various restrictions and
requirem_ents. Thé Defendant understands that if he violates onerr more of the conditions of any
supervised release imposed, he may be returned to prison for all or part of the term of supervised
- release, which could result in the D_eféndant sérving a total term of imprisonment greater than the
statutory maximum stated above.

5. Consent to Proceed Before a United States Magistrate Judge.  The Defendant

hereby acknowledges -the following: that he understands the federal charge against him and the
possible penaities; that he desires to enter a plea of guilty pursuant to this plea agreement; that hé
hés the right to have all proceedings, including the pIea hearing, conducted by the United States
District Judge assigned to this case; and that a United States Magistrate Judge may conduct the
plea hearing with the Defendant’s consent and the consent of his attorney and the Assistant
| United StatesAttome_y. |

Understanding these rights, the Defendaﬁt freely and voluntarily consents to having a

United States Magistrate Judge preside over the guilty plea hearing and gives up his right to

proceed before a United States District Judge. The Defendant understands that the United States

2
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District Judge will accept or reject the plea, accept or reject the plea agreement, and will impose

sentence.

6. ~  Factual Basis of Guilt and Relevant Conduct. The Defendant and the United
States Attorney's Office agree and stipulate to the foliowing statement of faots, which need not
. beproven at fhe time of the plea or sentencing: Between in or about October 201A1 and |
November 2012, the defendant knowingly and intentionally conspired with Jessica Tobias and
others to distribute and bossess with intent to distribute heroin. In furtherance of the.cénspiraoy,
the Defendant delivered and facilitated the sale of heroin to Tobias and other customers in fhe
Chippewé Coun;;y area. Heroin is a Schedule I controlled substance.

7. The United States Attorney's Office Agrees:

" A, Dismissal of Other Cbunts/Charges. Tile United States Attorney’s
Office agreés to move to dismiss Counts 2 and 3 of the Indictment against tﬁe Defendant at the
time of sentenciﬂg. The Defendant agrees, hoWever, that in determihing the sentence the Court
may consider the dismisséd counts in determining'the'applicable Sentencfng Guidelines range, |
wheré the sentence should fall within the applicable guidelines range, and the propriety of any
departure from the calculated guidelines range. By this agreement the Defendaﬁt does not
. concede that an increased sentence oi‘ an upward departure is, in fact, warranted.

B.  Acceptance of Resnonsibilitv. The United States Attorney’s Office

agrees not to oppose the Defendant’s request for a two-level reduction of his offense level for
acceptance of responsibility under §3E1.1(a) of the Sentencing Guidclihés. However, the United
States Attorney’s Office reserves the right to obj ect to the Defendant’s request if it subsequently

learns of conduct by the Defendant that is inconsistent with the criteria set forth in the
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Commeﬁtary to Section 3E1.1. Should the Court Zglran‘c a two-lével reduction as provided herein;
the Government states that the Deféndant has assisted authorities in the investigation or
prosecution of his own misooﬁduct_ by timely notifying it of his intentioﬁ to enter a guilty plea,
thereby permitting the Government to avoid preparing for trial, and hereby moves~ the Couzt to

grant an additional one-level reduction if the adjusted offense level is 16 or greater,

8. Theére is No Agreement About the Final Sentehcing Guidelines Range. The
Defendant and the United Statés Attorney;s OfﬁCe have no agreement as to the applicable
Sentencing Guidelines factors or the appropriate gnideline range. Both partieé reserx}e tllie right
to seek any sentence within the stamtofy maximum, and to argue for aﬁy criminal history.

category and score, offense level, specific offense chafacteristics, adjustments and departuies.

9. Waiver of Constitutional Rights. By pleading guilty, the Defendant gives up the
right to petsist in a plea of not guilty énd the right to a speedy and public trial by jury or by the
Court. - As a result of the.befendant’s guﬂty‘plea, there will beno trial. At ans; trial, whether by
jury or by fhe Court, the Defendant would have ha(i the 'following rights:

A. The right to the assistance of counsel, including, if the Defendant could
not afford an attorney, the right to héve.the Court appoint an attorney to r'epresént the.Defendant.
B. - The right to be presumed innoceﬁt and to have the burden of proéf placed
on thel gbvernﬁent to prove thé Defendant guilty beyond a reasonable doubt.
| C. The right to confront and cross-examine Witnesses against the Defendant.
D. | The right, if the Defendant Wished, to testify on the Defendaﬁt’s own
behalf and presénf evidence in opposition to the charges, including the right to call witnesses and

to subpoena those witnesses to testify.
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E. The right not to be compelled to testify,' and, if the Defendant chose not to
tesﬁfy or present evidence, to have that choice not be ﬁsed against the Defendant.
By‘ pleading guilty, the Defendant also gives up any and all rights to bursue any
affirmative defenses, Fourth Amendment or Fifth Amer;dment claims, and other pretrial motions

that have been filed or could be filed.

10.  Waiver of Appeal.

A Waiver. Inexchange for the promfses made by the government in

entering this plea agreemeﬁt, the Defendant waives all rights to appeal or collaterally attack the
- Defendant’s conviction, sentence, or-any other matter related to this prosecution, expept as listed
below.

B.. Exceptions.  The Defendant may appeal or see;k collateral relief to raise
a dlaim, if otherwise permitted by'law in such a proceeding, on the following grounds:

1. the Defendant’s sentence on any count of conviction exceeded the statutory
maximum for that count;

2. the Defendant’s sentence was based on ;a'n unconstitutiorial factor, such as
race, religion, national origin, or gender; |

3. the district court incorrectly determingd the Sentencing Guidelines range, if
the Defendant objected at séntencing on that basis; |

4. the Defendant’s sentence is above the Sentencing Guidelines range as
determined by the court at;entencing and ié unreasoﬁable;

5. the guilty plea was involuntary or unknowing;

6. the attorney who represented Defendant during the course of this ctiminal
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case provided ineffective assistance of co_ﬁnsell

If Defendant appeals or séeks collateral relief, he may not present any issue in the
- proceeding other than thosg described in this subpgragraph. |

11.  FOIA Requests. Thé Defendant hereby waives all rights, whether asserted

dircctly or by a reinresentative, to request or receive from any department or agency of the Unitéd
States any records pertaining to the investigation or prosecution of this case, including without
limitation any records that may be soﬁght under the Freedom of Information Act, 5 US.C. § 552,
or the Privacy Act of 1974, s‘U.S.C. §552..

12. T_he Court is not a Party to this Agreement. The Defendant understands that the

Court is not a party to thié agreement and is under no 4ob1_igation to accept-any recommendation
by the United States ~At’comey's Office or the parties regarding the sentence to be imposed. The
Defendant further understands that, even if the Court ignores such a recommendation .(.)r imposes
any seﬁtence ub to the maximum established by sfatute, the Defendant cannot, for that reason,.
withdraw his guilty plea, and he will renia.in bound to fulfill all his obligations under this
agreement. The Defendant understands that no one — not fhe prosecufor, the Defeﬁdantfs :
attorney, orAthe Court - can make a binding prediction or pronﬁse 1.‘egarding;r the sentence the B
Defendant will receif/e, except that it will be Within the statutory maximum.

13,  This Agreement ié Limited to the Parties; . This agreement is ‘lirhited to the
United States Attorney's 6fﬁoe for the Western District of Michigan, and cannot bind any other
federal, state or 100&1.1 prosecuting, administrative or regulatory authority. This agreemetit appliesi
only to crimes co@itted by the Defendant. This agreement does not appiy to or preclude any

past, pfesent, or future forfeiture or civil actions.

c
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14.  Consequences of Breach. If the Defendant breaches any provision of this

agreément, including any promise of cooperatién, whether before or after sentencing, the United
Statés shall have the right to terminate this agreemen;c, or deny any or all benefits to whiéh ’;he
Defendant would otherwise be entitled under the terms of fhis agreement. In the event tlllat the
bUnited States elects to terminate this agreement, thé'agreement shall be consi&ered null and void,
and the parties shall return to the same position they were in prior to the execution of this
agreement, as though no agreement ever existed. In such an event, tﬁe Defendant éhaﬂ remain

- Hable for proseéution on all original charges, and the United States shall be free té bﬁng sﬁch
additional charges as the law and facfs warrant. The Defendaﬁt further agrees to waive and
forever give up his right to rais;f: any claim that such a prosepution is time-barred if the
prosecutiqn‘ is brought Wi;chin oné (1) year of the breach that gives rise to the termination of this

agreement,

15.  This is the Complete Agreement.  This agreement has been entered into by both

sides freely, kndwingly, and voluntarily, and it incorporates the complete understanding between
the parties. No other promises have been made, nor may any additional agreements; -
understandings or conditions be entered into unless in a writing signed by all parties.or on the

record in open court.

ANDREW BYERLY BIRGE

United States Attorney
i fs [ R @,@W
Date . PAUL D. LACHNER

Assistant United States Attorney
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I have read this agreement and carefully discussed every part of it with my attorney. I
understand the terms of this agreement, and I voluntarily agree to those terms. My attotney has
advised me of my rights, of possible defenses, of the sentencing provisions, and of the
consequences of entering into this agreement. No promises or inducements have been made to
me other than those contained in this agreement. No one has threatened or forced me in any way
to enter into this agreement. Finally, I am satisfied with the representatlon of my attorney in this

- matter,

Dafe

I am Joseph Gideon Gravelle’s attorney. Ihave carefully discussed every part of this
agreement with my client. Further, I have fully advised my client of his rights, of possible
defenses, of the sentencing provisions, and of the consequences of entering into this agreement.
To my knowledge, my client's decision to enter into this agreement is an informed and voluntary
one, —

ATVt
Date MARK L DOBIAS
Attorney. for Defendant




